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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Guiltfree Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Guiltfree Industries Limited
(“the Company™) and its subsidiary (the Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss, including the Consolidated statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the
vear then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statement)”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (*Ind AS"), and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2023, and their
consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and
their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
“Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Other Information

The Parent’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information compare with financial statement of subsidiary audited by other auditor to the extent
it relates to the entity and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditor and consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it
relates to the subsidiary, is traced from their financial stateme other auditor, If, based on
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the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the consolidated financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including consolidated other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and accounting principles generally
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Qr erTor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the Company
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entity to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the respective board of directors either intends to liquidate their respective
entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective board of directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise {rom fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ TEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statermnents,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probahle that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

{a) We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 4,365.40 Lakhs as at 3 1st March, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 16,135.32 Lakhs and net cash
outflows amounting to Rs. 2.30 Lakhs for the yvear ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in
terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors. RO/
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statement;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports;

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statement;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on
31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group companies is disqualified as on 3 1st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is
based on the auditors’ reports of the Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.
Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, managerial remuneration paid or
provided by the Company during the vear is in accordance with the provision of section 197 of
the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group;

ii.  The Company and its subsidiary did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable lgssesy—.
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tit.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary company.

iv.  (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary company incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to
us that, to the best of (heir knowledge and bekhef, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
or subsidiary to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in any other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or subsidiary
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary company incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to
us and io the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company or any subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company or subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of
the Funding Party {*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiary
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11({e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstaterment.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under
Rule 11{(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023,

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

7.Waterloo
al Mehta Street,
Partner Kolkata
Membership Number: 063404 760069

UDIN: 23063404 g GTURTTIY

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13% May, 2023



BATLIBOI, PUROHIT & DARBARI CONTINUATION SHEET
Chariered Accountants ’

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GUILTFREE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financia! Controls under Clanse (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Guiltfree Industries Limited
{“the Company™) and its subsidiary company incorporated in India as of that date in conjunction with
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2023.

Management’s Responsibilify for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Director of the Group is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company,
which are incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faicly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company ate being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of infernal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, inchiding the possibility of collusien or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,
the Parent, its subsidiary company incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating eftectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal
financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our atoresaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to subsidiary company which
are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in [ndia.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAKFirm Registration Number: 303086E

al Mehta

Membership Number: 063404
UDPIN: 920634oYBETUXT TG 3Y

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13 May, 2023
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Address:-31, Netaji Subbas Road, ist Floor Duncan House Kolkata WE 700001 i
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 in Lakhs
. Note As at As at
Particulars
No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
L. ASBSETS
{1} Mon-current Assets
{a) Praperty, plant and equipment 2 12,817.18 13,116.24
(b} Right of Use Assets 4 1,843.13 2,777.29
(¢} Capital work in progress 2 82.57 327.82
(d) Goodwill 3 15,013.55 15,013.55
(e} Intangible assets 3 24,676.17 24,958.1%
[f) Financial Assets
{i} Loan 5 - -
{i) Otherfinancial assets 1 72.482 107.37
(g} Deferred Tax asset 7 = e
{h} Non-current tax assets (net] 8 75.79 50.75
{7} Qther Non-Current assets 9 22.99 18z.12
Tatal non-current assests 54,603.80 56,534.43
(2} Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 3,935.04 3,684.00
{b) Financial Assets
{i} investments 11 - 1,203.15
(i1} Trade receivables 12 1,492.38 1,023.53
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 12,061.33 7,128.41
{iv) Bank Balances Qther than (jii} above 14 43.88 43.38
{v} Loans 5 3,780.00 -
{vi} Other financial assets 6 92.01 31.29
(¢} Current Tax Assets {Net) 8 - -
(d}) Other Current assats ] 8,397.77 7,688.09
Total curent assets 29,802.41 21,502.36
TOTAL ASSETS 84,406.21 78,036.79
Il. EQUETY AND LIABILITZES
(1} Equity
(2)Equity share capital 15 92,483.20 84,149.88
[b}Other equity 16 (108,775.27) {75,509.57}
Equity attributable 1o equity holders of the parent {14,292.07) §,640.31
Nen-cantrolling interests 5,181.49 5,917.95
Total Equity 19,110.58) 14,558.26
{2) Liabilities
{1} Neon~current lizhilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 59,440.47 33,324.46
(fa} Lease Liabilities 18 1,809.27 2,620.05
[ii} Other financizf liability 19 - -
{b} Deferred Tax Lizhilities 7 9,126.30 7,964.44
(c} Provision 20 405.81 363.73
Total non-current liabilities 70,781.85 44,272.68
(2} Current fiabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 17 10,068.03 8,306.75
{ia) Lease Liahilities i3 455,30 574.48
(i} Trade payables 21
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprisas 921.88 398.46
-tatal outstanding fiues of eraditars other than micro 2,355.36 741122
and small enterprizes
{iii} Other financial liz hility 19 1,497.56 1,290.56
{b}Other Current Liabilitias 22 373.03 575.18
{c)Pravisions 20 52.78 43.7%
Total Current Jabilities 22,734.94 19,205.85
Total Habilities 93,516.79 63,478.53
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 84,406.21 78,036.79
Notes forming part of Consclidated Financial Statements 1-47

This is the Cansclidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Far Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Acceuntants
Firm Registration no: 303086E

Hemal Mehta
Partner
Mambership no; 063404

Place:Kolka
Date: lgjosf‘zng

7.Waterloo
Street,

Ghanshyam Pandiya

-
Rohit Garg
hole-time Director and CFO

DIN: 07782248

iz

Company Secretary
Membership na: 37228

PlaceKaolkata

Cate: 1310512013

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors

Akhilanand Joshi

Director
DIN: 07047418




Guiltfree Industrigs Limited
Address:-31, Netaji Subhas Road, st Floor Duncan House Kelkata W8 700001 N
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Caonsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for Year ended 31st March, 2023

% in Lakhs

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars
Na. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
L flevenue from operations 3 42,337.44 34,714.11
Sale of goods/Income from operation
42,337.44 34,714.11
IR Other income 24 308.25 271.04
.  Total income {I+1} 42,646.69 34,985.15
IV. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 30,179.97 25,737.20
Purchases of Stock- in -trade 26 39995 536.60
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock in Trade 27 {421.86) (754.93)
Employee benefits expense 28 7,065.24 6,540.77
Finance Cost 29 5,287.95 3.445.74
Depreciation and amortization expanse 30 2,159.08 2,256.53
Other expenses 31 30,496.38 21,322.71
Total expense 75,166.72 59,084.63
V.  Loss hefore exceptional items and tax {I1-1v) {32,520.03) (24,099.438)
Exceptional ftems B =
vl. Loss before tax {32,520.03) [24,099.438)
VIl. Tax Expense
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Tax for earlier years - 1.62
(3) Deferred 1ax (Credit) 7 1,157.79 (450.07)
Incame tax expense [ (Credit) 1,157.79 {443.45)
VI, Loss for the year (VI-VII} (33,677.82) (23,651.03)
IX.  Other comprehensive loss
(A)(i}ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re- measurements gain/ (ioss) on defined benefit ptans 13.04 40.83
(ii{lncome Tax relating to items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
Re- measurements gain/ {loss) on defined benefit plans {4.08) 2.63
Other comprehensive income f{expense) for the year, net of tax 8.96 43.46
K. Total cornprehensive loss for the year, net of tax attributable to equity holders (VIII+IX) {33,668.86) (23,607.57)
. 1loss attributable to:
Owners of the equity {32,037.85) {23,340.87)
MNon-controliing interest (739.95) {310.16)
(33,677.80 (23,651.03)
XIl. Other comprehensive loss attributable to:
Owners of the equity 5.47 4571
Non-controlling interest 3.49 (2.25}
8.96 A43.46
Xill. Total comprahensive loss attributable to:
Owners of the equity (32,932.38) {23,295.16)
Nen-contrelling interest [736.47) {312.41)
[33,668.85) {23,607.57}
Earnings per equity share {Face Value of Rs 10 each) 43
Basic, computed on the basls of profit attributable to equity holders [4.00} {3.15)
Diluted,computed on the hasis of profit attributable to equity holders {4.00) {3.15)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 1-47

This is the Consalidated of profit and loss referred to fn our report of even date

For Batlibok, Purchit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no: 303086E

Membership no: 063404

7.Waterloo
Sireet,
Kolkata
700069

Plage:Kolkata

pate: 1-3'05)-;@3

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors

-
Rohit Garg

Whale-time Directar and CFO

DIN: 07782248

5 Ghanshyam Pandiya

Campany Secretary
Membership no: 37228

Place:Koikata

Date: |7 }o $|2023

Akhilanand Joshi
Directar
BIN: 07041418



Guiltfree Industries Limited
Address:-31, Netaji Subhas Road, 1st Floor Duacan House Kelkata WE 700001 IN
CIN-U15549WEB2017PLC218864

Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flow _ % in Lakhs
For the year ended 31st March 2023
Far the Period endad Far the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Cash Flow from Operating activities
Loss before tax {32,520.03) (24,099.28)
Adfustments for:
Depreciation on Propesty, Plant & equipment 1,133.20 1,13%9.31
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 74211 737.49
Amortisation of intangible assate 28377 379.73
£xchange Difference 161
Met gain on current investment measured at fair vaiue - [1.48}
Interest income from Income tax refund {0.26)
(Gain}/ Loss on sale of praperty, plant and equipment 0,00 E
(Gain} f Loss an sale of current investment [Net) {129.78) {44.14)
Provision for Doubtful advances (Net} 1063 39.69
Gther Non Operating income (047} -
Provisien for Slew moving Inventory 228.71 159.57
Provision for Doubtful Debts 186.00
Loss an Inventory Valuation 0.14 =
Finance Cost 5,173.97 3,137.63
Gain on |ease modification {41.02) {2383}
Interest expenes on Lease liabilities 113.98 308,11
Liability no {onger required written back {1.05) (6.07}
Pravision na longer required written back - 100.00)
Interest income an financial instruments measured st amortised cost {6.00) (3.24)
Interest inceme from Loan given {92.12) 9
Interest inceme from Bank Depasits {29.20) (24.78)
Loss before working capital changes (24,955.79) (18,401.64)
Worling capital adjustments:
{lncrease)/ decrease in inventaries {473.88) [1,772.83)
(Increase)f decrease in trade receivables {654.46) (236.94)
{Increase)/ decrease in Men Current Financlal assets and Current Financial assets {20.61) 58174
{Increase)/ decreasa in Other Mon-Current assets and Other Current assets (716.53) {1,404.93)
Increase/{decrease] in Trade payables 1,957.57 980.56
Increase / {decrease) in Provision 5811 8178
Increase / [decrease] in Other Current financial liabilities 205,73 198.74
Increase f {decrease} in other Current liabilities 298.89 115,52
Cash Generated frem Qperations (24,296.32) {19,857.00)
Income tax paid {net of refunds) [24.78} {18.80)
Cash used in operating activities {A) {24,321.19) {19,875.40)
B. Cash Flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress {470.21) {840.43)
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.04 -
Purchase of intangible assets - (11.09)
Proceeds from Saie of current investments 52,597.91 23,957.46
Purchase of current investments (50,555.00) {25,815.00)
Creation/Maturity of Bank Deposit 309 41952
Interest received 118.07 24.78
Loan to Jointly cantralled entity {3,780.00)
Net cash flows fromn/{used) in investing activities {B] {2,085.10) (2,264.76)
€. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
issue of share capital 16,000.00 15,600.00
Principal Payment of lease liabilities {686.87) {606.22)
Interest paid other than on lease liabilities {5,138,32) (3,150.19)
Interest paid on Lease labilities {113.98) {308.11}
Repayment from current borrowings (net) {2,869.36) ({860.00)
Proceeds from non-current berrowings 3451030 17,945.10
Proceeds from current borrowings - 3,308.57
Repayment of non-current borrawings {4,362.63) {3,508.75)
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 31,330.12 29,020.40
Net increase/{decreass) in cash and cash equivalents (A+R+C) 4,932.92 6,870.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,128.41 24857
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12,061.33 7,128.41
Components of Cash and cash equivalents { Refer Note : 13)
For the quarter ended Far the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance with barks in current accounts 11,569.83 6,666.96
Chegue in hand 486,42 460.26
Cash on hand 5.08 118
Taotal of Cash and Cash Zquivalents. 12,061.33 7,128.41
The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set aut in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’
Refer note no. 39(ii) and note 41 for recendlliation of |=ase liability and net debt reconciliation
This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our Report of even date.
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Guiltfree Industries Limited
CIN:-U15549WB2017PLC218864

Address:-31, Netaji Subhas Road, 1st Floor Duncan House Kolkata WE 700001 IN

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity share capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. Tin Lakhs
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 711,498,655 71,149.87
Shares issued during the year 130,000,000 1,300.00
Bought back during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 841,498,655 £4,149.38
Shares issued during the year 83,333,333 8,333.33
Bought back during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 924,831,988 92,483.20

{1} Current reporting period

Balance at the heginning of the current reporting period

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior period
errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current reporting

Changes in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at the end
of the current
reporting period

=]

period
84,149.88 - - 8,333.33 92,483.20
{2) Previous reporting period
ted balance at
Changes in Equity Share :ae:‘baeeinni:a:fthe Changes In equity  [Balance at the end
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period Capital due fo prior period :urreit repgorting share capital during af the current
" . -

Errors period the current year reporting period

71,149.87 » L 1,300.00 84,149.88

. Other equity (Refer Note 16) % in Lakhs

Particulars

Share Application Money
Pending Allotment

Reserves and surplus

Other Comprehensive
Income:

Securities Premium

Retained earnings

Other items of OCI

Total Other Equity

Resgrve
Balance as at Ist April, 2022 - 16,312.48 (91,996.39) 174.34 {75,509.57}
Profitf{Loss) far the year - - {32,937.85} - {32,937.85}
Cther camprehensive income / (Loss} for the year
- Re measurement gain/loss) on defined benefit plans {Net of taxes) - - - 5.47 5.47

Share Application Money Received 16,000.00 - - 10,000.C0
Transfer to Equity Share Capital (8,233.33) - - (8,333.33)
Transfer to Equity Securities premium {1,686.67) 1,666.67 - - =
Share application money refunded during the period - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 17,979.15 [124,934.24} 179.81 {106,775.28)

Reserves and surplus

ather Comprehensive

Share Applicat 1
Particulars aednelcationibioney nesne Total Other Equity
Pending All 1t
Securities Premium ) N N
Retained earnings Other itemns of OCI
Reserve
Balance as at ist April, 2021 - 13,712.48 {68,655.53) 128.63 {54,814.42)
Profitf{Loss) for the year - - {23,340.87) - {23,340.87)
Other comprehensive income / (toss}) for the year
- Re measurement gain/{loss) on defined benefit plans [Net of taxes) - - - 4571 4571
Share Application Money Received 15,600.00 - B 15,603.00
Transfer to Equity Share Capital {13,000.00} - - {13,000.00}
Transfer ta Equity Securities premium {2,600.00} 2,600.00 - - -
Share application money refunded during the period - - - -
Balance as at 31st March,2022 - 16,312.48 (91,996.39) 174.34 {75,509.58)

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our Report of even date.

For Batlibol, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no: 30308B6E

Hem hta
Partner
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[ Street,
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Y ;
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Place:Kolkata
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Whole-time Director and CFO
DIN: 07782248
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Directar
BIN: 07041418

Company Secretary

Membership no: 37228

Place:Kolkata

Date: 13/0 5/2023




Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statemeats

1 Group information

These Consalidated Ind AS financial statements {“Financial Statements”} comprise Standalens Ind AS financial stataments of Guiltfree Industries Limited {"the Campany” or “Parent
Company” ar "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group”) as at and far the year ended 315t March 2023, Guififree Industries Limited is a Company damiciled in
India with its registered office at 31, Netaji Subhas Road, 1st Floor Duncan House Kotkata, 700001, West Bengal having corporate [dentity number U15549WB2017PLC218564. The
Group is primarily engaged in the business of processing, manufacturing and sales of food products,

Detail of Subsidiary; Propartion {3} of equity interest

Name of the Company Country of Principal As at As at
incarparation activities 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Apricot Foods Private Limited India FMCG business 7o 70

1.1 Significant accounting policies
a}- Basis of preparation and consalidation
These consolidated financial stataments {*financial statements’) of the Group have been preparad in accordence with the zccounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting $tandards {Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) and athar relevant provisions of the Act. The Group has uniformiy applied
the accounting policies during the periods presented.
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently te all the periods presented in the
Consolidated financial statermnents. Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group normal operating eycla and other criteria as set out in the
Division 1l of Schedule 11l ta the Companias Act, 2013, 8ased on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivatents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Subsidiary are entity where the group exercise centrol or hoid more than one-half of its total share capital. The net assets and results of acquired businesses are includsd in the
consalidated financial statemants from their respactive dates of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains contral,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The accounting policies
adapted in the preparation of cansolidated financial statements are consistent with those of previous year. The consolidated financial statemants of the Company and its subsidiaries
have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like itams of assets, labilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intragroup balances, intra-
group transections and the unrealised profits/losses, unless cost/revenue cannet be recovered.

The excess of cost to the Group of its investment in subsidiary, on the acquisition dates aver and abave the Group's share of equity in the subsidiary, is recognised as 'Goodwill on
Consclidation” in the consoiidated financial statements. The said Goodwill is not amertised, however, it is tested for impairment st each Balance Sheet date and the impairment loss, if
2ny, Is provided for,

Men-contrelling interests in the net assets of conselidated subsidiary is identified and presented in the consolidated Balance Sheet separately within equity.

Naen-contrelling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary consists of;

(a] The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investmant in a subsidiary is made; and

{b) The non-controlling interasts share of movements in equity since the date parant subsidiary relationship came into existence.
The profit and other comprehensive income attributsbie to non-contralling interests of subsidiary are shown sepzrately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Holding Company. All amounts have been rounded-off upto two
decimal places to the nearest Lzkhs, unless otherwise indicated.

b). Basis of measurement
These consalidated financial statamants have been preparsd on the histarical cost hasis, excapt for certain assets and liabilities which has bean measured at Fair Value basis as
mentioned below:

ftems Measurment Basis
Certain financial assats and lizbilities Fair Value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined

benefit obligations

). Key accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these consalidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenles, expenses, assets and labfiities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period, Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledga of currart events and actions, uncertzinty about tihese assumptichs and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or Fabilities in future periods. Continuous evaluation is done an the estimation and judgements based on historica/ experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonabie. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospactively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have a significant risk of resalting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2021 is included in the
fallowing nates:

Note 7 - racognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

MNote 32 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumpticns;

Mote 34- recognitian and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources {ifany);

MNote 2 & 3 - Useful Life and Residual Value of Property Plant and equipment and Intangible Asset
Note 2 & 3- Impairment of Praperty Plant and Equipment and Intangible asset { ifany )
Note 4 & 18 - Measurement of Lease liabilities and Right of Use Asset {ROU"

d}. Current versus non-cuerent classification

All assets 3nd liabilities have been classified as current and nen-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule |l of the Act, Based on
the nature of products and the time between the =cquisition of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash and eash aquivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as upto 12 months for the purpese of current/non-current classification of assets and liahilities,

A




Notes forming part of Consolidated Financlal Statements

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Praperty, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses, if any.Cost of an itern of proparty, plant and
aquipment includes its purchase price, duties, taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing costs,any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Property, plant and eguipment acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recoghised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic henefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the peried in which they are incurred.

Subsequent Expanditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of the asset [s added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset hayond its previously assessed standard
of performance. All other related expenses, including day to dav repair and maintanance expenditure and cest of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of profit and loss for
the periad during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation, Estimated useful lite and residual value

Depreciation on property,pfant and equipment is provided, on their having been put into use, in the following manner:

Depraciation is caleulated on cost of ltems of praperty, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value using Straight Line Method at the rate derived with reference to tha
useful Iife as specified under Part 'C’ of Schedule 1| of the Companies Act’ 2013 Useful Iife and residual value of some assets are determined by the management based on 3 technical
evaluation considering nature of assef, past experience, sstimated usage of the assef, vendar's advice stc, Residual value of tangible sssets, where considered, has been taken as five
percentage af the original cost of such assets.

The range of estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Block of Asset Useful life { in years)
Plant and machinary '10-15

Tael & Equipmeant s

Dies & Moulds 1

Furniture & fixtures 1o

Computer & paripherals 3

Electrical Installation 12

Lab equipments 10

Offlce equipments 5

Leaschold Improvement Qver Contract periad

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depraciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial years end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The carrying amaount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to detarming if there i3 any indication of impairment based on the internal/external facters. An impairment loss
is recognized wherever the carrying amount of assets exceads fts recaverable amount which is the greater of net selling price and value in use of the respective assets. in assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vafue Using a pre-tax discount rate that reftects current market assessment of the time value of money and
risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of assessing impairmant, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. After fimpairmant,
depraciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Lapital work-in-progress and Capital advancas

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried at cost. Cost comprises of purchase cost, related acquisition expenses,
development / construction costs, barrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets,

[+

. Intangible assets
Recognition and Measurement
Acquired Computer softwares and knowhow & licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the specific asset to its intended use and subsequently at
cost less accumulated amortisation and aceumulated Impairment loss, if any.

Goodwill and Cther intangible assets (except Computer softwares) arising on ascount of business combination are recognised at fair value st the acquisition date. Subsequently,
intangible assets are carried at cost lass any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis ever the period of their estimated useful
lives. Estimated useful lives by majar class of finite-life intangible assets are as follows:

Class of Assets Estimated useful lives
Computer Softwares & years
Distributor Relationship 10 yaars
Non -Compete Fee Syears

The amortisation period and the amortisation methed far finite-Iife intangible assets is reviewad at aach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

For indefinite life intangible assets, the assessment of indefinite |ife is reviewed annually to determine whether it continues, if not, it is impaired or changed on prospective basis based
on revised estimates. Goodwil is inftially recognised based op the accounting golicy for business combinations and is tested for impairment annually.




Nates forming part of Consolidated Firancial Statements

c. Leages:
The Graup as a lessee:

The Group lease asset classes primarily consist of leasas for land, buildings , plant and machinery and operational facilities . The Group assessas whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the tight to control the use of an identified 2sset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, Ta
assass whether a cantract conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: {i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i} tha
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the periad of the lease and {iii} the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement af the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset [“ROU”} and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or lass (short-term leases) and low value lzases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the leasa.

Certain fezse arrangemants includes the options te extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROV assets and lease liabilities includes these cptions when it is
reasonably certzin that they will be exercised,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjustad for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencemeant
date of the lease plus any [nitial direct costs less any iease incentives. They are subsequently measurad at cost less accumulated depraciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease term and usefu! fife of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying smounts may not be recoverable. For the purposs of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (7.e. the higher of the fair value less cast to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an indivicdual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
zre largely independent of those from cther assets. In such cases, the recoverabie amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unft (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates In the country of domicile of these leases, Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
to the relzted right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination optian.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Consolidated Bafance Sheet and lease payments have baen classified as financing cash flows.

The Group as a lessor:

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other |eases are dlassified as operating leases,

For operating ieases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis avar the term of the relevant lease.

. Inventoriaes

o

Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and packing materials are carried at the lewer of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use In
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost
and net realizable value is made on an tem-by item basis.

In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materiats and store,spares & promotional material, weighted average cost method is used. Cost of inventery comprises all costs of
purchase, duties, taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and ail other costs incurred i bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads, and ather costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present focation and condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facifities.

Net realisable valus is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The nst
realisable valua of materials in process is determined with reference to the selfing prices of refated finished goods.
The provision for inventery obsolescence is assessed regularly based on estimated usage and shelf life of products.

. Impairment of assets

[

(i} Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether thera is any indication basad on internal / external factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
racoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit (CGU) is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or CGU to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount. The carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction 7s treated as an impairment loss and is recagnized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Less. If, at the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously assessed Impairment loss no longer exists, the recoversble amount is reassessed and the asset is reflacted at the
recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recagnized are accordingly reversed in the Consclidated Statemant of Profit and Loss.

q

The Group bases its impairment caiculation on detaifed b and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Company's cash-ganerating units to which the
Individuzt assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generaliy covering a period of five years,

Goodwill is tested for impairment on anaual basis. if on testing, any impairment exists, the carrying amount of goedwill is reduced to the extent of any impairment loss and such loss is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss.

{ii) Financial asse¥s
In accordance with |nd AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ['ECL') model for measuremant and recognition of impalrmant loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between alf contractual cash flows that are due to the Group i accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
recajve, discounted at the criginal effective Interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Group is required to
consider:

- All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) ovar the expected life of the assats.
- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other cradit enhancements that are integrzi to the contractual terms,
Trade recefvables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group apglles the simplified approach of Ind AS 102, which requires measurament of loss alfowance at an amount aqual to lifetime expected credit
losses, Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events ovar the expected life of a financlal instrument.

Other finonciol assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initfal recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected cradit losses, else at an ameunt equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

Whan making this assessment, the Group uses the change in the risk of a defauit sezurring ovar the expected life of the financiai asset. To make that assessment, the Group comparas
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reascnable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since Inftial recognition. The
Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not Increased significantly since initial recognition if tha financfal asset js determined to have low credit risk at the balance
sheet date.

EC|. allawance recognised {or reversed) during the pericd is recognised as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Lass under the head ‘Other expenses’




Notes forming part of Consolidated Fipancial Statements

f. Financial asset and liabilities

Recognition snd initial measurement

The Group initially recognises finaneial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the centractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities zre
meastred at fair value on fitial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financlaf liabiilties, that are not at fair value
through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

{lassification and subsequent Measurement

The financial assets are classified in the following categories :

1) finzncial assets measured at amortised cost.

2) financial assets measured at fair value through profit & loss account

3} financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive inceme

The classification of financial assets depends on the Group business madel for managing financial assets and the contractual tarms of the cash flow.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financlal asset is subsequentiy measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial 2sset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of grincipal and interast on the principal amount outstanding.

financial instzuments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVFOCI)

A financial asset is subseguently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the centractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fihaacial instzuments measured at fair value through profit or boss account [FYTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categaries are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liakilities

Financial liahilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other payables maturing within one year frem the balance sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the shart maturity of these instruments,

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the asset.

Financlal liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual okligations are discharged or cancelled, or expirs.

g Foreign currencies Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inta the functional currency of the Group at the exchange rates prevaiiing at the date of tha transaction. Monetary assets and liahilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Mon-monatary assets and fiabilities that are
meaasured at falr value in a forelgn currancy are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determinad. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are transfated at the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction, Exchange differences are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Lass in the period in which they arise.

=

. Segment Reporting
The Chief Dparating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group performance and allocates resources based on an anzfysis of various performance Indicators by industry classes.

The operating segment of tha Group is identified to be * Snacks food ¥ as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Greup level as one segment.

. Rewvenue recognition
Revenue from sale of products is recognised when coantrol of products being seid is transferred to customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance

obfigations in contracts are considered as fulfiiled in accordance with the terms agreed with the respective customers. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and are acceunted far nat of raturns, rebatas and trade discount and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government such as goods and services tax, etc.

Accumulated experiente is used to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates.

Customers have the contractual right to return goods only when authorised by the Group. An estimate is made of goods that will be returped and a lfability is recognised for this

ameunt using a best estimate based on accumulated experience.

The Group cansiders the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price, The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goads to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties {for exampla taxes collected on
behalf of government). The consideration promised in 2 contract with a custormer may include fixed consideration, variable conslderation (if reversal is less Iikely in future), or both.
The transaction price is allocated by the Group ta each performance obligation in 2n amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which it expects to be entitfed in sxchange for
transferring the promised goods to the customer. For each performance obligation identified, the Group determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the parformance
obligation over time or satisffes the performance cbligation at a point in time. When sither party to a contract has performed its obligation, 2n entity shall present the contract in the

balznce sheet as a contract asset or a contract lizbility, depending on the relationship between the entity’s perfermance and the customer’s payment,
income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as the service is parformed and there are no unfuifilled obligations.

Interest income is recognized using effective interest method and is included in ather income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend income is recognized at the time when the right to receive is established by the reparting date.
Other incomes hava baen recognized on acerual basis in the consolidated financial statements, except when there is uncertainty of collection,

—

. Borrowing costs
Berrowing casts directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necassarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sate are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs thatan
entity incurs in connection with the barrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also Includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to g costs. Borrowings
are initially recagnized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Barrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective




Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
k. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balarice sheet comprise chegues in hand, cash at bank and cash In hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
For the purpase of the conselidatad statement of cash filows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Taxes

{i) Current Income tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss far the year using appticable tax rates for the relevant peried, and any adjustment to taxes in respect
of previous years. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses raspectively. Interest Income, if any, related to
Income tax is included in Other Income.

fii} Deferred tax and Liabilities

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases and accounting bases of assets and liabilities at the tax rates and laws that have been enacted ar
substantively enacted at the Baiance Sheet date,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the axtent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Bafance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is na langar prabakie that sufficient taxahle profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unregognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
prebable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recegnised outside profit or toss (glther in OCI or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OC or directly in equity.

m. Fair value
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentionad above. Fair value s the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfar the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the mest advantageous market for the asset or liabifity

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels,
deseribed as follows, the inputs to valuation technigues used to measurs value, The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priotity to guoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities {Level I inputs) and the lowest priority to unchservable inputs {Leve! 3 inputs).

Level 1 — guoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabillties

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liakility, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — inputs for the asset ar liability that are not based on observable market data junobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value en a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between lavels

in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of egch reporting period and discloses the same.

]

Provislons and Contingent Liabilities

A provisien is recognised if, as a resuit of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and 1t is probabla that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the axpenditure requirad to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligatian.

In an event when the time value of maney is material, the provision s carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation

Contingent liahilities

A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency dependent on uncertain future events, or 2 present abligation
where no cutflow is possible, Majar contingent liabilities are disclesed In the consclidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of economic rasaurcas is remote,

]

Employee benefits

{i) Short-term employee benefits: All short term employee benefits such as salaries, Incentives, special awards, medical beneflts which are expected to be settled whoily within 12
manths after the end of the pertod in which the employee renders the related services and which entitles him to avail such henefits are recognised on an undiscounted besis and
charged to the Statement of profit and |oss .

{11} Defined contribution plans: Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined centribution scheme. The Group recognises contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employes renders the related service. The Group has no obfigation, other than the contribution payeble to the provident fund.

{iii) Defined henefit plans: A defined benafit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan, The Group gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit
plan. The Groug net abligation in respect of defined benefit plans is caleulated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.The calculation of defined benefit abligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future cantributions to the plans,Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses due to experiance adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets {excluding interest) are recognised in Other comprehensive ingome {QCH).
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

{iv} Compensated absences: The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and nonaccumulating in nature, The expected cost
of accumuiating compensated absences is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, for the unused entitlement
that has accumulated as at the balance sheet date. Nan-accumulating compensated absances are recognised in the period in which the absenees aceur.

P- Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on acerual basis.

=

. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or Joss before Other Comprehensive Income for the year by the weighted average numbker of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
For the purpese of calculating diluted eamnings per shara ,the net profit or loss before Other Comprehensive Income for the year and the weightad average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

. Note on Recant Accounting Pronouncements
On March 31,2023, the Minitry of Company Affairs notified the Companies ( Indian Accunting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 effecitive for annual periods beginning on or after
April 1,2023 which Include amendments / clarifications in the following accounting standard as below:

Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements

Ind AS 8- Accounting palicias, Changes in Accounting Estimares and Errars

Ind As 12 - Income Taxes
The company is in the process of assessing the applicy
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otes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

% in Lakhs

5 Loans As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{i} Current
{unsecured, considered good}
Loan to sister concern® 3,780.00 -
*The Loan to Herbotab india Private Limited, sister concern, was given after complying appliceble provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Loan was given in
accordance with the terms and conditions agreed between the parties and is to be used by the recipient in the normal course of business. The loan is repayable on
demand. The Rate of [nterest on the loan is 10.00% p.a 3,780.00 -
b, Loans granted to Promoters, Directors,KMPs and Related Parties
Amount of loan or advance in the |Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in
nature of loan outstanding the nature of loans
Type of Borrower

Lzl i;sztsmmh At ?;Lsztzmamh As at 31st March 2023| As at 315t March 2022
Bromoters - - - -
Birectors = - E -
KMPs - - - -
Related Parties
i} Loan to slster concern-repayabfe on demand 3,780.00 - 100% -

[ Other financial assets

{i} Non Current
Security deposits [ measured at amortised cost} 654.24 106,20
Payments made under protest 4.07 -
Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve menths 411 117
72.42 107.37
{ii} Current
Bank Deposits 0.00 6.03
Security deposits 89.78 25.26
Interest Accured but not due on FO 2.25 -
92.01 31.29

8 {i} Non-current tax assets {net}

Taxes deducted at source recoverable {net of provision) 75.79 5075
75.79 50.75

{ii) Current tax assets {net}

Taxes deducted at sourca recoverable [net of provision) - -

9 (i} Other Non-Current assets Asat As at
{Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital advances 20.31 176.65
Prepaid expenses 2.68 6.47
Security and other deposits - =

22.9% 183.12
Less: Provision for douktful advances - -
22.9% 183.12
{ii} Other Current Asset
{Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Advances other than capitof advances:
Advances for Supply of Goods 62.47 57.80
Advance for Supply of Services & Others # 52.04 112.46
Advance to employees 20.78 19.02
135.29 189.38
Unsecured considered Good 78.95 141.31
Unsecured cansidered doubtful 56.33 48.07
135.28 189.38
tess: Provision for Doubtful advance {56.33} {48.07)
Sub-total Net Advances other than capital advance 78.95 141.31
Balances with statutory / government authorities 8,147.49 7,277.58
Prepaid Expanses 171.33 269,20
8,397.77 7,648.09

10 Inventories

{At the lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw materials { includes Packing materials) 1,581.27 1,778.59
Work-in-progress 16.63
Finished goods 1,854.59 1,290.52
Stock In Trade 165.51 328.25
Stock In Transit { Raw materials) - -
Steres , Spares & Promotional Materials 313.04 286.55
3,935.04 3,684.00
The write down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to % 470.17 Lakhs {31 March 2021 T 241.46 Lakhs] towards slow moving, non-mavi| r@&@)}dﬁer
inventaries. The write down are included in cost of materiais consumed or changes in inventories of finished goods,work-in-progress and stock-1 (zgd/./\
Ny
~
11 [ Investments [=




stes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

T in Llakhs
Current Investments (unguoted)
Investmant in Mutual Funds {Quoted) - Level 1
ICIC| Prudential Liquid Fund - Diract Plan - Growth = 1,803.16
o 1,903.16
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments - FYTPL - 1,903.16
Market vaiue amount of Quoted investments - FYTPL - 1,903.16
Asat As at
12 | Trade receivables 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Unsecured
Considered good 1,492.38 1,023.54
Considerad doubtful 24533 59.31
1,737.71 1,082.85
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {245.33) {59.31)
1,492.338 1,023.53
Qutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Less than & months SimonthsL 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Particulars ==
Ageing for Trade Receivable outstanding as on 21 March 2023
{1} Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 1,429.16 20.07 10.40 23.23 9.52 1,492.38
{#)Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - J
{i#) Undisputed Trade Receivabies —credit impaired 77.81 106.64 18.48 17.29 25.11 245.33
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - -
[v) Disputed Trade Receivakles ~which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable 1,506.97 126.71 28.88 40.52 34.63 1,737.71
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt 245.33
Net Trade Receivable 1,506.97 126.71 28.88 40,52 34.63 1,492.38
Ageing for Trade Receivable outstanding as on 31 March 2022
{i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 985.17 4.64 2421 8.52 - 1,022.54
{ilUndisputed Trade Raceivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{iil) Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired 9.90 1.24 3.07 31.82 13.29 59.31
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - = - = .
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{v] Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable 1,028.80 5.88 3.07 3L.82 13.29 1,082.85
Less: AHowance for doubtful debt 50.31
Net Trade Receivable 1,028.80 5.88 3.07 31.82 13.29 1,023.53
13 Cash and cash equivalent Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks:
- I curent accounts 11,569.83 6,666.96
- Bank Deposits with original maturity of less than three months# 486.42 480.26
Cash in hand 5.08 1.19
# Bank deposit include Rs 4,13 Lakhs { March 31,2022 Rs 4,11 Lakhs) lien against Haryana VAT Registration 12,061.33 7,128.41
14 | Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalent
Balances with banks:
- In Escrow accounts 42.88 43.88
- Bank Depasits - -
43.88 43.88




Notes forming part of Consolidated Firancial Statements X in Lakhs
As at As at
Note 7 Deferred tax ts / {Liabilities) [net
BYET DEtewe s ets Yt SRt 31st March 2023 | 31t March 2022
Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Business loss and unabsorbed depreciation 164.8% 1,365.30
Provision for employee benefits 103.44 103.75
Provision for Expenses & Others { net ) 514,50 453.55
782.79 1,932.60
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
Excess of tax depreciation over bock depreciation 9,904.42 9,893.01
Others 4.67 4.02
9,909.09 9,897.04
{9,126.30) (7,964.44)

Movement in Deferred tax assets / {Liabilities) {net)

Recognized in other

Recognized in

Particulars 1st April, 2022 comprehensive » 31 March 2023
income profit or loss
Assets
Business loss and unabsorbed depreciation 1,365.30 {1,200.46) 164.85
Share Isue Expense -
Lease liahilities -
Provision for employee benefits 103.74 {4.08) 378 103.44
Provision Tor Expenses & Others 463.55 50,95 514.50
Provisions for doubtful advances -
Provisions allowable for tax purpose on actual basis -
Sub-total 1,932.59 {4.08) {1,145.73) 782.79
Liabilities
Excess of tax depreciation over bock depreciation 9,893.01 11.41 9,904.42
Financial assets at fair value - Mutual Funds - = = E
Others 4.02 0.65 4.67
Sub-total 9,8%7.03 - 12.06 9,909.09
Total (7,964,424} {a.08) {1,157.79) (9,126.30)
Maoavement in Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities) (net)
Recognized in other Recognized In
Particulars 1 April 2021 tomprehensive t 31 March 2022
income profit or loss
Assets
Business 1o0ss and unabsorbed depreciation 902.42 462.88 1,365.30
Provision Tor employee benefits 98.98 2.63 2.14 103.75
Provision for Expensas & Others 452 28 11.27 463.55
Sub-total 1,453.68 2.63 476.29 1,932.60
Liabilities
Excess of tax depreciation aver book depreciation 9,867.45 25.56 9,893.01
Financial assets at fair value through profit or less - Mutual Funds - = - -
Others 3.36 0.66 4,02
Sub-total 9,870.82 - 26.22 9,897.04
Total (8,417.14) 2.63 450.07 {7,964.44)




tes forming part of Consalidated Financial Statements

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Numbear % in lakhs Number Zin lakhs
Equity Share capital
Authorised share capital
Equity shares 1,500,000,000 150,000.08 1,000,800,000 100,000.00
[ 1,50,80,00,000 equity shares of % 10/- each (March 31, 2022 , 1,00,00,00,000 equity share % 10/- each)]

1,500,000,000 150,000.00 1,000,000,000 100,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares fully paid up 924,831,988 92,483.20 841,498,655 84,149.88
[92,48,31,998 equity shares of X 10/- each]
[ March 31, 2022 : 84,14,98,655 equity shares of 2 10/- sach |
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital 924,831,988 92,483.20 §41,498,655 84,149.88
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number % in Lakhs Number T in Lakis
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 841,498,655 34,145.88 711,498,655 71,142.87
Add; Sharas issued 83,333,323 8,333.33 130,000,000 13,009.00
Less: Shares bought back . g B .
Balance at the end of the year 924,831,938 92,483.21 841,498,655 84,149.88

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached ta sharas
Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share having the par vaiue of X 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liguidatian of the Company, the holder of aquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distributicn of all preferential ameounts. The distribution will be in propertion ta the

number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
Shares held by promoter at the end of year

Sharas held by promaoter at the end of the year As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

% Change during the

Year
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Share No. of Shares % of Total Share
RPSG Ventures Lid { formerly known as CESC Venturas Limited ) 924,831,988 100% 841,498,655 100% 9,90%
Details of sharehalders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company and equity shares held by the holding Company
Mame of shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number % of halding Number % of holding

Equity shares
RPSG Ventures Limited | farmerly known as CESC Ventures Limited | 924,831,588 100.0% 841,498,655 100.0%

924,831,938 100.0% 841,498,655 160.0%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and ather declarations received from sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and benaficial

ownership of shares.

No bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cash ar shares bought back since incorporation of the Company till the reporting date.

=

Other Equity

As at
As at 31 March 2023

As at
As at 31 March 2022

Resarves & Surplus:
Securities premium Reserve
Retained Earnings
Other comprehensive Income

Mature and purpose of other reserves

17.{1} Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to recerd the pramium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised In accordance with the provisions of the Indian Companies Act,2013 { the *
Companies Act")

17.{ii} Retained enrnings

Retained earnings are tha profits/{loss) that the Company hes earned/incurred till date, less any transfars to ganeral reserve, dividends or sther distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings is a frea reserve availabie to the Company and eligible for distribution te sharsholders, in case where It is having positive balance representing
nat earnings till date.

17.{iii) Other comprehensive Income

This Reserve represents the cumulative gains [net of losses) arising on Re- measuremants gain/ (loss) on defined henefit plans through Other Comprehensive Income, net of
amounts reclassified, if any, to Retainad Earnings.

17,979.15
(£24,934.24)
179.81

16,312.48
(82,996.39)
174.34

{106,775.27)

{75,509.57}
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements Zin Lakhs
As at As at
31st March 2023 31 March 2022
23 |Revenue from operations
Sale of Product 42,168.79 34,628.60
Other Operating revenues
Scrap sales 168.65 8551
42,337.44 34,714.11
24 |Otherincome
Gain / {loss) on sale of current investment [Net) 139.7& 44.14
Net gain on current investment measured st fair value - 148
Interest income:
- On Bank Deposits 29.20 24.78
- On Loan to Sister Concern 92.12 -
- On Income tax refund 0.26 -
- On financial instruments measured at amortised cost 6.00 3.24
Other Non Cperating Income 047
Profit on account of lease medification 41.02 23.98
Exchange differencas {1.61) -
Liability no longer required written bacl 1.05 106.07
Sale of Service - 39.00
Miscellaneous income 0.98 28.35
309.25 271.04
25 |[Costof Material consumed
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 1,778.59 1,151.28
Add : Purchases (Net} 29,982.65 26,364.51
Less : Inventory of materials at the end of the year (1,581.27) (1,778.59)
Cost of Material Consumed 30,179.97 25,737.20
26 |Purchases of Stock- in -trade
Finished Goods 399,95 536.60
306,95 536.60
27 jChanges in inventories of finished poods, work In progress and stock in trade;
Opening Inventory
Finished goods 1,290.61 857.50
Stack-in-trade 328.25 643
Work-in-progress -
Clasing Inventory
Finished goods 1,854.58 1,290.61
Stock-in-trade 169.51 328.25
Work-in-progress 16.63 5
{Increase) / decrease in Inventory {421.86) (754.93)
28 |Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and Bonus 6,534.53 6,123.72
Contributicn to provident and other fund 302.28 269.08
Staff welfare expenses 228.43 147.97
7,065.24 6,540.77
29 | Finance Cost
interest expense
On Term loan 801.12 919.84
On Leng Term Working Capital 4,094.43 2,002.10
On Cash Credit facilities 255.92 166.24
On Unsecured loan - 6.63
Other borrowing costs
Interest expenes on Lease liabilities 113.98 308.11
Bank Processing and Others Charges 22.50 42.82
5,287.95 3,445.74
20 | Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Depreciation on Property, Plant & equipment | refer note 3) 1,133.20 1,139.31
Degpreciation on right-of-use assets { refer note 5} 742.11 737.49
Amortisation of intangibie assets ( refer note 4) 283.77 379.73
2,159.08 2,256.53




Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements % in Lakhs
As at As at
31st March 2022 31 March 2022
31 |Other expenses
iob waork charges 3,589.46 2,517.21
Factory expenses (includes Power and fuel cost) 934.79 975.23
Carriage,Freight and Forwarding Charges 6,113.16 4,667.77
Repair & Maintenance

- Buildings - -
- Plant & Machinery { Includes stores and spares consumed) 300.45 143.03
- AMC and Other Maintenances expenses 219.72 19318
Marketing and Advertising expenses 9,499.79 6,087.25
Sales Promotion and other selling expenses 7,288.64 4,535.56
Consultancy and tegal Expenses 165.75 744.89
Rent 78.30 19.52
Commen Area Maintenance 50.37 50.37

Auditors' remuneration = -
- For Audit Fees 15.00 14.00
- For taxation matiers 2.50 2.50
- For other services 9.00 10.00

- For Re-imbursement of expenses 0.05 -
Recruitment Expenses 99.07 189.59
Travelling, Boarding & Lodging 1,084.27 583.80
Rates and taxes 38.03 4.60
R&D Expense 216.00 323.97

Provision for Doubtful Debt 186.00 -
Provision for Doubtful receivables and advances 10.63 39.69
Misc Expenses 516.41 230.52
30,496.39 21,322.71




Notes forming part of Consoclidated Financial $tatements
Note 32 Employee Benefit

1) Post Retirement Benefits - Defined Contribution Plan % in Lakhs

B a = As at As at
Benefit (cantrsitisnito) 31st March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Provident fund 270.47 253.67
National pensicn scheme 3176 15.32
Other fund 0.05 0.09
Total included in "Employees Benefit Expenses” 302.28 269.08

2) Post Retivernent Benefits - Defined Benefits Plan

{A).For Company {Guiltfree Industries Limited)
a) Gratuity

The Gratuity Scheme provides for lumpsum payment to vested emplayees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completad year of service or part thereof in excass of six months in case employees completes five years or more of service .

The Company has not yet started contributing to defined benefits funds or make investment in plan assets.

The present value of defined benefit obligation and related current service cost has been dene as per Projected unit credit method. Actuarial Valuation for Gratuity has

been dene in line with requirements of Ind AS 19 [2015). Below notes sets out in details the assumption used for gratuity valuation.
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation are as follows:

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

{i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations
Balance at the beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefit Paid

Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from assumption changes
Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments
Balance at the end of the year

{ii} Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year

galance at the end of the year

{iii} Net defined benefit liabilities / (assets})
Present value obligation as at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year
Net liabilities recognized in balance sheet

{iv) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
Employee henefit expenses:
Service cost
Finance costs
- Interest costs
- Interast income
Net impact on profit before tax

{v) Remeasurement losses / {gains) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from assumption changes

Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments

Remeasurement losses [ (gains) in other comprehensive income

148.47 132.33
7259 57.36
2.99 9,73
(45.07) -
28.17 {9.53)
(25.51) (41.42)
133,64 148.47
183.54 148.47
183.64 148.47
72,59 57.26
2.99 9.73
#1.58 67.09
28.17 (9.53)
{25.51) (41.42)
2.66 {50.95)

{vi} With the chjective of presenting plan assets and obligations of the defined benefit plans at their fair value at Balance Sheet date, assumptions used under Ind AS 13 are

set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

Partciculars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Discount rate {per annum}

Expected rate of return on plan assets

Salary escalation rate (per annum)

Withdrawl rate (per annum)

Expected average remaining working lives of emplayees {years)
Mortality

7.25%
NA
8.00%
20.00%
20
IALM 2012 - 2014
Ultimate

7.36%
N/A
7.00%
18.00%
20
iALM 2012 -
2014
Ultimate

{viii) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in the employment market.

{ix} Sensitivity Analysis: Reasonabliy possible changes at the reperting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, heldin
affected the defined benafit obligations by the amounts shown below:
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31st March 2023 31 Wtarch 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
{i) Discount Rate {0.5% Movement) (169.77) 188.89 (137.25) 160.82
{ii) Future Salary {0.5% Wovement) 197.47 (170.60} 159.55 (138.25)
{iii} Atrition Rate (0.5% Movement) (182.41) 184.88 (147.26) 145.69
{x}. Assetsand Liabilitics retating to employee detined benetits - Estimated tuture payments of undiscounted gratuity is as tollows:
As at As at

31st March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Within 12 months 1.44 1.21
Between 2 and 5 years 7.36 5.64
Between 6 and 0 years 27.29 37.72
Beyond 10 years 625.96 505.18

b} Leave Enchashment
Actuarial Valuation for leave Enchashment has been done in line with requirements of ind AS 15 (2015} Below notes sets cut in details the assumption used for leave
Enchashment valuation.

As at As at
31st Mareh 20623 | 31 March 2022

{i) Change in present value of the defined benefit abligation:

Obligations at the beginning of the year 164.00 168.04
Current service cost 53.27 44,93
Interest cost 8.93 10.02
Benefit paid (81.57) {63.85)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in financial assumption 28.18 {10.08)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 4.65 14.95
Obligations at the end of the year 177.46 164.00

{ii) Change in fair value of plan assets:
Obligations at the beginning of the year = -
Obligations at the end of the year - -

(i)} Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of pian assets

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 17746 164.00
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net liabilities recognized in balance sheet 177.46 164.00

{iv) Components of net cost charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
Employee benefit expenses:

Service cost 53.27 44.93
Actuarial Gain lass Applicable only for last year 32.83 4.86
Finance costs
- Interest costs 8.93 10.02
- Interest income - -
Met impact on profit before tax 95.03 59.81

{v} Components Remeasurement losses / {gains} in other comprehensive income
Actuarial {gain}/loss arising from assumption changes - =
Actuarial {gain}/loss arising from experience adjustments = =

Remeasurement losses / {gains) in other comprehensive income = =

{vi} With the objective of presenting plan assets and obligations of the defined benefit plans at their fair value at Balance Sheet date, assumptions used under Ind A5 19 are
set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

As at As at
31st March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Discount rate {per annum) 7.25% 7.36%
Expeacted rate of return on plan assets NA NA
Future compensation Growth {per annum) 8.00% 7.00%
Employee Turnover (per annum} 20.00% 20.00%
Average Expeacted Future Service (years) 20 20
Mortality IALM 2012 - 2014 IALM 2012 -
Ultimate 2014

Ultimate
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{B). For Subsidary {Apricot Foods Private Limited)
{a) Gratuity - (funded)

Gratuity is a post empleyment benefit and is a defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The lizhility recognised in the
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of plan assets (if any), together with adjustment
for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service cost. Independent actuaries calculate the defined benefit obligation annuaily using the projactad unit credit
method. Actuarial gains and losses are credited/ charged to the statement of other comprehensive inceme in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

The following table summarises the components of defined benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss/other comprehensive income ('OCl') and the
funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

As at As at
31st March 2023 | 31 March 2022

{i} Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 67.65 43.70
Current service cost 20.64 15.63
Interest cost 4.82 2.98
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from assumption changes 7.65 12.79
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments {22.95) (4.45)
Actuarial (gain)/lass on obligations arising due to change in demographic assumptions (0.33) (0.03)
Benefit paid directly by the employer {12.49) (2.57)
Benefit Paid from the fund 5 -
Balance at the end of the year 64.99 67.65
{ii) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assats

Balance at the beginning of the year 3.40 3.30
Interest Income on Plan Assets Q.16 0.22
Contripution by emplioyer - 1.69
Expected return on plan assets™* 0.07 {1.81)
Benefit Paid from the fund = -
Balance at the end of the year 3.63 3.40
{iii} Net defined benefit liabilities / {assets)

Present value obligation as at the end of the year 64.99 67.65
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year (3.63} {3.40)
Net liabilities recognized in balance sheet 61.36 64.25

(iv) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

Employee benefit expenses:
Service cost 20.64 15.63

Finance costs

- Interest casts 4,82 2.98
- Interest income {0.16} {0.22)
Net impact on profit before tax 25.30 18.39
{v) Remeasurement losses / [gains) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return (differential} on pian assets, excluding interest income (*} (0.07) 1.81
Actuarial (gain}/loss (15.63) 8.31
Remeasurement losses / (gains) in other comprehensive income (15.70) 10.12

{*) Amount iower than % 1,000.

{b) Leave encashment

Leave encashmenti: Defined benefit abligation 36.14 35.79
{vi) With the objective of presenting plan assets and obligations of the defined benefit plans at their fair value at Balance Sheet date, assumptions used under Ind AS 19 are
set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.
As at As at
Partciculars 31st March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Discount rate {per annum} 7.41% 7.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.41% 7.25%
Salary escalation rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
For Officer
Withdrawl rate {per annum) 10.00% B LR 072501
. ‘a
P & for Workers
—_— category 15%
Expected average remaining working lives of emplayees (years) F 8 14
Mortality cgo_y 1ALM 2012 - 2014 1ALM 2012 -
e 103‘ Uitimate 2_014
Stleet z Ultimate
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[wiii} The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniarity, premotion and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in the employmeant market,

{ix) Sensitivity Analysis: Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to cne of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have

affected the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shown below:

31st March 2023 31 March 2022
Increase Decraase Increase Decrease
{1} Discount Rate [1% Movement} 4.29) 4.88 {8.41}) i0.20
{ii} Future Salary {1% Movement) 4.85 (4.34) 10.12 (8.50)
(iii) Atrition Rate (1% Movement} (0.36) 0.36 0.44 (0.47)

{x). Assets and Liabilities relating to employee definad benefits - Estimatead future payments of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

As at As at
31st March 2023 { 31 March 2022
Within 12 months 5.09 2.05
Between 2 and 5 years 24.49 8.63
Between & and 10 years 31.87 23.06

Expectad employer contribution in Gratuity plan for the year ending 31 March 2023 is % 44.30 lakhs (31 March 2022: £ 42.82 lakhs)

C). Aforesaid defined benefit plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount
rate which is determined by reference tc market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government honds.

Interast risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will Increase the plan liahility; however, this
will be partially offset by an increasa in the return on the plan's investments.

Longevity risk

TTTE PTESETIC vaide O (T8 UETNed DeNeT IOy 15 TCUdIET Oy TETEele o e
hest estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will

inrraace the nlanis liahilitw

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit liahility is calculated by reference teo the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan's lizbility.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements < jpy Lakis
34 |Contingent llabilities and Capital commitments As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{§) Contingent liahilities:
Bank guarantees 94,19 B6.02
VAT demand for financial year 2018-17 and 2017 -18 [Refer note (a) below}] 33.75 33.75
Clalms against the Company not acknowledged as debts includes Income tax demand AY 2014-15* o 68.84
Income Tax -AY 2021-22%F 2.00 -
* The appeal lying with CIT{A} has been decided in favour of the company with il liabiiity. 127.94 188,61
** |nsome tax arder passed ufs 143(3] of Income Tax Act,1961 on account of depreciation and provisicn for baddebt
dissflowance pending in CIT{A}
{ii} Capital commitments
Estimated vaiue of contracts In capital account remaining to be executed [(net of capital advances X 56,08 Lakhs { March AT T
3%, 2022 T 20,60 Lakhs )]
5608 20.60
{2} The above matters are lying at appellate forum and the munagasmant is confident of succeeding in all these matters
based on legal precedence's and expert oplnions.
T in Lakhs
35 |Tax expenses Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current tax o N
Tax for earlier years E 1.62
Deferred tax:
- Deferrad tax {credit}/ charge 1,157:79) (450.07)
Tax Expense/ {credit) 1,157.79 {448.45)
B. Amaunt recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Current tax - -
Deferred tax:
- Deferred tax [credit)/ charge (4.08) 2.63
Tax Eapense/ [credit) refating to OCI items {4.08) 2.63
35%(a) | Reconciliation of tax expense between accounting profit at applicable tax rate and effective tax rate;
Accounting Loss before tax {32,520.03) {24,099.48)
Enacted tax rates in India {%) 26%) 26%
Computed expected tax expense {8.455.21} (6,265.87)
Tax Impact on Expenses Disallowed {4.08) -
Tax expense of earlier years - 1.62
Defarred Tax assets reversed 1,606.00 -
Unrecognised deferred tax Assets 8,114.93 5,880.46
Tax impact of Others adjustment {103.86) {64.665)
Income kax expense reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,157.79 {448.45)
35{b)| Details of income tax assets / (liabilities)
Non-current:
Taxes deducted at souree recoverable {net of provision} 7579 50,75
75.79 50.75
Current:
Taxes deducted at source recoverable {net of provision) S B
Net income tax assets / {liabilities} 75.79 50.75

36

37

Company had acquired 70% stake in Gujarat based Apricot Foods Private Limited for 3 31,362.51 lakhs (including all transfer and reglstration fess). Acquired company- Apricet
Foods Private Limited is in the business of snacks and has its own famous brand E-vita. The purchase consideration was arrived at on the basis of business valuation carried out
by professional valuer taking into account the business potentiat and synergies expected in future. Consequently Apricot Foods Private Limited has becoma subsidiary company
with affect from 24th April,2017. A part of the purchase consideration is yet to be payzble to the erstwhile shareholders of the Apricot Foods Private Limited (Refar note: 19).

Segmental information

The Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) evaluates the Group performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry
classes. The operating segment of the Group is identified to be " FMCG " as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Group level as one segment.
itability.

1. Capital management

For the purpeses of the Group capital management, capital incfudes issued capital, all other equity reserves and borrowing less reported cash and gash equivalents.

The primary ebjective of the Group capita! management is to maintain an efficient capital structure in order to meet its {iquidity requirements , to reduce the cost of capital, to
support the corporate strategy , to meximise shareholder's value and to repay loans as they fall due.

The Group has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.

The following table summaries the capital of the Group : X in Lakhs
R As at As at

Patiilers 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Long Term Borrowing (including surrent maturities of long term debt) 67,896.64 37,698.97

Shaort Term Borrowing 1,662.86 4,532.23
Less: Cash and cash aquivalents {12,061.33) {7,128.41)

Total Borrowing (Net} 57,448.17 35,102.79

Total 2qulty IS 2,640.31

Total Capital {Equity+Net Debt} & Tde7a3.10




Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements % in Lakhs
2. Financial risk management

The Group financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and executs Its bhusiness strategies. The Group management risk policy is set by the Managing Board. The
Group activities may expose it to a veriety of risks such as credit risk, Hauidity risk and market risk. The Group primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, A summary of the risks have bean given below.

{a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a finangial instrument fails to maet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group recelvables from customers and loans given. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial Institutions, a5 well as credit exposure to clients, including
outstanding accounts receivables. The maximum exposure ta credit risk is equal to the carrying valus of the financial assets. The ehjective of managing counterparty credit risk is
to prevent josses in financial assets. The Group assesses the credit guality of the counterparties, tzking into account thelr financial position, past experience and cther factors.
Adequate provisions are kept in boaoks for any doubtful receivables and advances.

Trade and other receivables

The Group exposure to credit risk is influenced mainty by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demegraphics of the customer, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which the customer cperates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. The Group limits its axposure to credit risk from trade receivables by
establishing 3 maximum payment period of thres manths for customer. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are groupad according to their credit characteristics,
including whether they are wholesale, retall or institutional customers, their gecgraphic lecation, industry, trading histary with the Group and existence of previous financizl
difficulties. The default in collectlon as a percentage to total receivable is low.

The Group exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows % in Lakhs
Partical As at As at
artiodlars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables
- Damestic 1,492.38 1,023.53
- Expart 5 &
1,492.38 1,023.53
Movement in the allowance for impairment in trade recelvabies
=i As at As at
REEEE 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening bzaiance 59.31 155.61
Frovisions made during the year (net of ravarsals} 186.01 |- 96.30
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 245.32 59.31

Trade recelvables are usually due within 30-30 days. Generally and by practice most customers enjoy a credit period of approximately 30-9¢ days and are not interest bearing,
which is the normal industry practice.

{b) Eiquidlty Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligaticons as they became due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabiities when due. The Group corporate treasury department is responsible far [iquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In
addition, processes and policies refated to sugh risks are ovarsesn by the senior management.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, T in Lakhs

) Contractual cash flows
Carrying amount

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years Wore than Syears

As at 31 March 2023
Current Financial liabilities

Trade payables 8,777.24 8,7171.24 - -
Financial fiabilities 1,497.56 1,497.56 - -
Barrawings 10,069.03 10,069.03 = =
Lease Liabilities 465.30 465,30 - -

Non- Current Financial liabilities

Borrowings 59,440.47 = 48,764.01 10,676.46
Lease Liahilities 1,809.27 - 1,212.58 596.68
83,058.87 21,809.13 29,976.59 11,273.14

As at 31 March 2022
Current Financial liabilitias

Trade payablas 7,809.68 7.309.68 - -
Financial liabilities 1,290.96 1,290.96 - -
Borrowings 8,906,75 8,906.75 = -
Lease Liabilities 574.43 574.48 - -

Naon- Current Financial liabilities
Borrowings 33,324.46 - 30,154.06 3,170.40
Lease Liabilities 2,620.05 - 1,793.11 826,94

54,526.38 18,581.87 31,947.17 3,997.34
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{c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The obiective of market risk
management is to manage and contrel market risk expasures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

{i} Interest rate risk

Interast rata risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group exposure to risk of change in market interest rates relates primarily to its debt interest obligations, {t's borrowings are at floating rates and its future cash flows will
fiuctuate because of changes in market Interest rates.

(i.af interest Rote Risk Exposure

The exposure of the Group borrowings Lo interest rate changes at the end of the reperting perlod are as follows; Tin Lakh
Asat As at
Particluars
31 March 2023 21 March 2022
Total borrawings (inctuding current maturities} 69,444.80 40,865 .16
69,444.80 40,865.16

(i.b} Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest ratas

Impact on profit before tax

Particulars
31 March 2023 31 march 2022
Interest Rates - Increase by 50 basis points {50 bps) (347.22) {204.23)
Hnterest Rates - Decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) 347.22 204.33

{iij Price risk

The Group does not have any significant investments in equity instruments which create an exposure to price risk.

(ifi} Forefgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In fereign exchange rates, The Group exposure teo the risk]
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Trade receivables and Trade payables due to transactions entered in foreign currencies. However as an reporting|
date no such trade receivables and trade payables are due to be paid/ received , hence Group not expose to any foreign currency risk.

3.a) Financial instruments - fair values and riskr
Category-wise classification of financial instruments including their levels in the fatr value hierarchy.

Financial assets and liabilities Amartised tost Cost FUTPEL
As at 31st March, 2023
{i). Financlal assets

Investmeants - - -
Trade receivables 1,492.38 - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 12,061.33 - -
gank Balances othar than Cash and cash eguivalent 43.88 3 -
ioan 3,780.00 - -
Other financial assets 164.43 - -
Total financial assets { Non-current and Current} 17,542.02 - =

{ii}. Financial fiabilities

Borrowings 69,509.50 - -
Lease Liabilities 2,274.56 = =
Trade payabies 9,777.24 - -
Other financiai liakility 1,487.56 - -
Total financlal lfabilities [ Non-current and Current) 83,058.36 - -

As at 31st March, 2022
{i}. Financial assets

Investments = 1,901.68 1,903.16
Trade receivables 1,023.53 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 7,128.41 - -
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalent 43.88 - -
Loan - - -
Other financiaf assets 138.66 - -
Tatal financial assets ( Non-current and Curvent] 8,334.48 1,901.68 1,903.16
{ii}. Financial [liabilities

Borrowings 42,231.21 - -
Lease Liabilities 3,194.53 - -
Trade payables 7,809.68 - -
Other financial fiability 1,290.86 - -
Total flranclal liabilities (| Non-current and Current) 54,526,38 - -

3. b) The following methods and assurnptions were used to estimate the fair valugs:-

(i) The fair values of the mutual fund instruments and units of alternative investment fund are based on net asset value of units declared at the close of the reporting date.

(i) The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is cansidered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term naturs,

{iit}) Misceilaneous receivables/payables where carrying amount is reasenable approximation of fair value as settlement period cannot be reliably measured.

{iv} Considering the nature , risk profile snd other qualitative factars of the financial instruments of the Group ,the carrying 2mount will be the reasenable approximation of the|
fair value.
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3. c} Disclosure of sanction facilities: % in Lakhs
Particluars Used Unused Total
As at 31st March, 2023
(i) Facilities from - RBL Bank limited
- Term Loan 5,500,00 - 6,500.00
- Cash credit - 500.00 500,00
-letter of Cradit Limit = = -
{ii} Facilities from - Tata capital Financial Services Limited
- Long Term Working Capitai Laan 18,375.00 - 19,375.00
{iil) Fadilities fram - ICEC1 Bank Limited
- Cash credit 798.18 70184 1,500.00
- Short Term Loan 00,00 3,200.00 4,000.00
- Long Term Working Capital Loan 18,076.00 - 19,076.00
{iv) Facilities from -- IDFC First Bank
- Long Term Working Capital Lean 10,000.00 - 10,000.00
- Overdraft - 500.00 500.00
{v} Facllities fram -- Indusind Bank
- Long Term Working Capital Lean 14,000.00 6,000.60 29,000.00
- Overdraft = 100.08 100.00
As at 31st March, 2022
{i] Facilities from - RBL Bank limited
- Term Loan 8,750.00 - 8,750.00
- Cash credit - 500.00 500,00
-Letter of Credit Limit = 100.00 100.00
{ii) Facilities from - Tata capital Financial Services Limited
- Long Term Worling Capital Loan 15,000.00 - 15,000.00
{iii) Facliities from - [CICI Bank Limited
- Cash credit 1,167.52 332.48 1,500.00
- Long Term Working Capital Loan 15,000.00 - 15,000.00
{iv] Facilities from - IDFC First Bank
- Long Term Working Capital Loan 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00
- Overdraft 2 500.00 500.00
{v) Facilities from -- Indusind Bank
- Long Term Working Capital Loan 6,000.00 5,500.00 12,500.00
- Ovardraft - 100.00 100.00
39 jlLease Disclosure
{i}[The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabiffties
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Lease Liahility 485.30 574.48
Non Clrrent Lease Liahility 1.809.27 2 620.05
Total 2,274.57 3,1%4,53
{ii}{ The following is the movement in lease [labilities during the year ended
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 3,194.53 2,975.98
Add: Addition during the year [net of reversal) 237.84 -
Add: Finance cost acerued during the year 113.98 308.11
Less: Daletions 425.88 -
Less: Gain/{loss) due to lease modification 41.02 -
Less: Payment of lease liabifities 200.86 3,060.71
Closing balance 2,274.57 3,194.53
(ili}| Cantractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2023 on an undiscounted basis:
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years Wore than Syears
Lease payable 653.55 1,661.66 643.14

v}
40
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The group incurred % 78.30 Lakhs { March 31, 2022 ¥ 19.52 Lakhs) towards expenses relating to short-term/Low value leases.

The Code on social security,2020 | 'Cade') relating to employee kenefit during employment and post-employment benefits recelved presidential assent in September 2020. The
cade has been published i the Gazette of India. However the date on which code will come inta effect has not been notified and final rule/interpretation have not yet been
issued. The Group wifl assess the impact of the code when it come inta effect and will record any related impact in the period the cade become effective.

Net Debt Reconciliation:

The changes in the Group liabilities arising from Nan- current and current borrowing is classified as follows: Zin Lakh
. Non-turrent Current
Particluars . . Total
borrowings borrowings
Net debt as at 1 Agril, 2022 37,698.97 4,532.23 42,231.20
Repayment of nen-current borrowings {4,362.63) [} (4,362.63)
Proceed from current borrewings - {2,859.36) (2,866.36)
Proceed from nan-current borrowings 34,510.30 - 34,510.30
Net debt as at 31 March, 2023 67,846.64 1,662.27 £9,509.51
Net debt as at 1 April, 2021 23,270.45 1,475.83 24,746.28
Repayment of nen-current borrowings 14,428.52 - 14,428.52
Proceeds from current borrowings (net) /-N.USGAU 3,056.40
i) GROHS;
Mat debt as at 31 March, 2022 & 88223 42,231.20
A"
.Y
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% In Lakhs

Other statutory information:
{i} The Company da not have any Benami praperty, where any procesding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
{} The Company do not have any transactions with campanies struck off.
{il} The Company do not have any charges or safisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
[iv] The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto curreney or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v} The Company have not advanced ar loaned or Invasted funds ta any other person{s} or entitylies], including foreign entities (Intermediaries} with the understanding that the
Intermediary shail:
a. directly or indirectly lend or ivast in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiarias) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{vi] The Company have not received any fund from any personis) or entity(ies), including forelgn entities {Funding Party} with the understanding {whather recorded 1n writing or
otherwise) that the Cempany shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities iklentified in any manner whatseever by o on behalf of the
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as incame during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey ar any other relevant provisions of the |ncome Tax Act, 1961
(wlii) During the previous year ended 31st March, 2021 the Centra| Government has published The Code on Social Security, 2020 and Industrial Relations Code, 2020 ("the
Codes"} in the Gazette of India, inter alia, subsuming various existing labour and industrial laws which deals with employees related benefits including post employment. The
effective date of the code and the rules are yet to be notified. The impact of the leglslative changes, if any, will e assessed and recognised post notification of the relevant
pravisions.
(ix) The campany has nct been declared as any wilful defaulter from any bank or financial Institution where from the company has taken loan and overdraft facilities.
{x) The campany has complied with the no. of layers prescribed under clause 7 of section 2 of the act read with the {Companies Restriction on number of Layers Rules) 2017

Funding Party (Uitimate Baneficiaries) or

Earning per share {EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during

the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares cutstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be Tssued on conversion of all the dilutive petential Equity shares Inta Equity shares.

The following reflects the prafit/{loss} and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computaticns:

As At As At
31 March 20z | 31 March 2027
Net profit/{loss) attributable to equity shareholders (%) {33,677.82) {23,651.03)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 8,417.27 7,506.06
Nominai value of equity shars (%) 10 i0
Basic and diluted earring per share {X} [4.00) {3.15)

Going concern

The company has incurred a net loss after tax of Rs (33,677.82) lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023 and accumulated loss stand at Rs.{1,24,934.23) lakhs and its current
assets exceeds current liakilities, including current borrowings, by Rs 7,067.48 lakhs. The Company has access to unutifised credit lines with its bankers and also additional funds
from its promoters, if and when required. The Company is concentrating on increasing its operating cashflows with a focus on improvement of margins. n view of the above
factors, and the approved business plan for the next year, the management is confident of its abifity to generate sufficient cash to fulfil all its obligations, including deht

repayments, conseguent to which, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concarn basfs.

There are no material discrepancies between the quarterly statements filed with the |lenders and the books of accounts of the company with respect to inventories and other

financial assets,
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Prior period comparatives
Previaus year figures have been regrouped/reciassifisd wheraver necessary to correspond with current year classification/disclosure.

The financial statemeants are approved for issue by the Board of Directors In Its meeting held on 13th May,2023
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